

Original Research Article

Analysis of the Welfare Level of Gillnet Fisheries in the Nusantara Fishery Port Palabuhanratu, Sukabumi

ABSTRACT

This study aims to analyze the welfare level of gill nets in the Nusantara Fisheries Port, Palabuhanratu, Sukabumi. This research was conducted from October 2021 to May 2022. The method used is a descriptive method with a case study approach. Welfare level is analyzed using quantitative data that is scored on welfare indicators according to the modified Central Statistics Agency (2015). Data collection using questionnaires and documentation techniques. The sampling technique used in this research is the census. Technique census sampling is using the entire population to be used with total of 24 respondents. The results showed that the average score of the welfare level of drift gillnet fishermen in Palabuhanratu, Sukabumi was 2.27, which means that it belongs to the moderate level of welfare. The most influential factor in the level of fishermen's welfare is income. The income of fishermen is not stable due to the uncertain number of catches, extreme weather, irrelevant fishing gear and fishermen still relying on boat owners.

Keywords: Welfare Level, Drift Gillnet Fishermen, Central Statistic Agency, Income

1. INTRODUCTION

The Palabuhanratu Nusantara Fishery Port (PPN) is a capture fisheries sector or area that has abundant natural resources. The southern coast of West Java has become one of the main fisheries potential areas for the coastal communities of West Java because it is directly related to the Java Sea fishing area and the Indonesian Exclusive Economic Zone (ZEEI) (Guritno *et al.*, 2014) in the waters of the Indian Ocean. Economically, fishery resources can produce benefits in the long term for fishermen. The large fishery potential in Palabuhanratu makes most of the people there have fishermen's livelihoods who depend their lives on the natural wealth in Palabuhanratu. However, the utilization of

this potential cannot be managed properly, it can be seen from the background of fishermen who are still identical with poverty (Rahman & Alhifni, 2018). The condition of natural resources, especially in the field of fisheries, which is very abundant, does not guarantee that the economic life of the community is guaranteed.

Furthermore, in order to improve the standard of living of gillnet fisherman in Palabuhanratu, there are factors that must be understood so that fishermen can be said to be prosperous. Welfare is a human condition in a state of well-being both physically, mentally and socially (Chalid & Yusuf 2014). High and medium welfare are distinguished by the level of income and education of the head of the household, as well as household facilities (Cahyadinata *et al.* 2019). This research

is expected to provide recommendations for appropriate actions and strategies in providing assistance and also appropriate policies for drift gillnet in Palabuhanratu.

2. MATERIAL AND METHODS

This research was conducted at the Fisheries Port of the Archipelago, Palabuhanratu, Sukabumi Regency, West Java Province, Indonesia, in October 2021 – May 2022. The method used for this research is a descriptive method with a case study approach. This method has a purpose in making a description, and an accurate picture in accordance with the existing facts and the phenomenon being investigated. The object of this research is specifically for fishermen who use drift gillnet. The sampling method used is census, which is using the entire population as respondents. The population in this study were gillnet fishermen who landed fish in Palabuhanratu totaling 24 people.

2.1 Welfare Level Analysis

The fishermen's welfare level is analyzed using quantitative data that is scored on welfare indicators according to the modified Central Statistics Agency (2015). Modifications are made by entering the income calculation criteria on the household income indicator with the Regional Minimum Wage standard for Sukabumi Regency and the Minimum Physical Needs standard on the household expenditure indicator based on 9 basic ingredients in a year

2.1.1 Regional Minimum Wage (UMR)

Each region has its own set UMR by the Governor at the provincial level and the Regent/Mayor at the Regency/City level. The regional minimum wages for Sukabumi Regency in 2020-2021 are: IDR 3,028,531

2.1.2 Minimum Physical Needs Standards (KFM)

Family expenditures can be measured using the Minimum Physical Needs Standards (KFM) for clothing and food for fishermen's households based on the value of consumption in a year from local prices (Sobari and Suswanti 2007 in Maryani 2018). Based on the prices prevailing at the time of the study, the number of Nine Basic Ingredients in a year is IDR 3,639,000 and IDR 303,250/month.

2.1.3 Central Statistics Agency (2015)

The level of welfare can also be based on the criteria used by the Central Statistics Agency (2015) with ten indicators of welfare. In general, it can be formulated as follows:

1. Household Income (IDR/month)
2. Household Consumption/Expenditure (IDR/month)
3. Living Condition
4. Housing Facilities
5. Health of Household Members
6. Ease of use of facilities health workers
7. Ease of enrolling children in education
8. Quality of education for household members
9. Sense of security from criminal disturbances
10. Ease of accessing information and communication technology

Based on the welfare indicators above, tabulation and classification are then carried out to determine the total score obtained. The criteria for each classification into three parts are as follows:

1. Score between > 2.31 (high welfare level);
2. Score between $1.65 - 2.3$ (medium level of well-being);
3. Score between $0.99 - 1.64$ (low welfare level).

3. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

VAT Palabuhanratu is a fishing port located in the Sukabumi district, precisely in Palabuhanratu. Palabuhanratu is

located in Sukabumi Regency, West Java Province, Indonesia. According to the Center for Statistics and Information of Sukabumi Regency in 2013, Sukabumi Regency is located between 106° 49' to 107° 00' East Longitude and 60° 57' to 70° 25' South Latitude. Palabuhanratu Archipelago Fishery Port, precisely located in Palabuhanratu Bay which is part of the waters of the Indian Ocean. The port has an important function as a capture fisheries infrastructure that helps the smooth production, processing and marketing of fishery products.

3.1 Characteristics of Fishermen

The respondents in this study were fishermen in Palabuhanratu who used drift gill net fishing gear in Palabuhanratu. The drifting gill net fishermen in Palabuhanratu are divided into two, namely the captain, who is the person who drives the ship and also the crew or crew in charge of catching fish. The gill net fishermen interviewed in Palabuhanratu act as labor fishermen, which means that the fishermen do not own a boat and are only tasked with catching fish. These fishermen usually have collaborated with ship owners, so that the ship and all fishing costs are borne by the ship owner.

3.1.1 Age

Productive Age Population according to BPS is the population in the age range of 15-64 years. Based on the results of the research, the age of fishermen ranged from 21-80 years and the average age of the most was 31-40 years.

3.1.2 Education

In general, drifting gill net fishermen in Palabuhanratu only reached the level of elementary school education (SD) with a percentage reaching 96% or in the sense that 23 out of 24 respondents graduated from elementary school and only 4% graduated from junior high school (SMP). It can be concluded that the education

level of fishermen in Palabuhanratu is very low. According to (Adhanari 2005) said that formal education can be used as an indicator to measure productivity, the higher the level of education it has, the higher it is.

3.1.3 The Number of Dependents

The number of dependents of families of drifting gill net fishermen in Palabuhanratu ranges from 1-6 people on average. The large number of dependents can affect household expenses. The greater the number of dependents, the greater the family expenses. According to Hasyim (2006) the number of dependents is a factor that need to be considered in determining income to meet needs.

3.1.4 Work Experience

Fishermen drift gillnet in Palabuhanratu mostly work for 16-30 years. The longer experience that fishermen have in catching fish, of course, the possibility of these fishermen being more proficient and skilled. From the interview results, it is known that the fishermen nets in Palabuhanratu are currently only fishermen who have high flying hours. This is because to operate drift gill nets is quite difficult and fishermen must be able to read field conditions related fishing grounds to changing.

3.2 Welfare Analysis According to Indicators from the Central Statistics Agency (BPS)

3.2.1 Household Income Indicators

Fishermen drift gillnet in Palabuhanratu is obtained through a profit sharing system. The amount of the profit sharing comes from an agreement that has been agreed by both parties, namely fishermen and ship owners. The monthly income of fishermen's family members comes from all family members including fishermen, wives and children. The fishing trip for drift gillnet is divided into one day trips with an average income of IDR 50,000-

Comment [WU3]: ? what is it and what is level of productivity if so

Comment [WU1]: Must be in methods not in results

Comment [WU4]: What is author's interpretation

Comment [WU5]: English?

Comment [WU2]: Poor english

Comment [WU6]: What does it mean

IDR.150,000 and a 3-day trip with an average income ranging from Rp.250,000-Rp400,000. The income of drift gillnet belongs to the low income category, this can be proven by the total average income of members family of IDR 749,028/month is smaller than the UMR of Sukabumi Regency, which is IDR 3,028,531.

3.2.2 Family Expenditure Indicators

Based on the prevailing prices at the time of the study, the price of basic raw materials according to KFM standards is IDR 3,639,000 per year and IDR 303,250 per month. So when compared with the expenditure per member of the fishermen's family with an average of IDR 514,727 per month it can be concluded that 24 fishing families are included in the non-poor criteria, because the expenditure is greater than KFM. The form of fisherman's expenditure consists of two types, namely food and non-food. Expenditure on food is the most widely spent basic needs, namely basic necessities.

Non-food expenditures include education (children supplies and children's books), health (using over-the-counter drugs or going to the doctor). One thing that must be changed from these fishermen is the extravagant lifestyle. When they get big profits from fishing, they immediately spend their money to buy things they don't need without setting aside money for saving, so that when it's not fish season, they don't have any more money.

3.2.3 Living Condition

The criteria for living conditions for drift gill net fishermen as a whole can be said to be good. Based on direct research in the field, the houses inhabited by fishermen are generally still under construction, such as some unfinished rooms or unpainted walls, the fishermen continue to build their houses if they get a large income from the sea. They live in a decent place because they have used walls, tile roofs, the status

of their own houses, non-ground floors and a land area of >8m². Although so many of them are still renting.

3.2.4 Housing Facilities

Facilities are factor that will support the comfort of the home you have. The living facilities for *drift gillnet* in Palabuhanratu can be said to be good, supported by the availability of clean water, proper sanitation and good lighting. The facilities in question include lighting sources that already use electricity, water sources from PAM, toilets that already use their own bathrooms and use gas as fuel.

3.2.5 Health Indicators for Household Members

Health is a healthy state, both physically, mentally, spiritually, and socially that allows everyone to live socially and economically productive lives (Notoadmodjo 2012). Determining the health of fisherman's family members can be seen from how often family members get sick in a month. If it is calculated that the fishermen of *drift gillnets* answer that their health is good or they rarely get sick. Respondents said that only minor illnesses such as flu and cough were enough to be treated with over the counter medicines. But there are also some respondents who have quite severe diseases such as diabetes and stomach. Many fishermen also experience decreased hearing and vision due to their old age and fishing activities for decades.

3.2.6 Ease of use of facilities health workers

Facilities Fishermen rarely use hospital health facilities due to the distance from their homes which is quite far. The fishermen also complained about the assistance they should have received but it didn't arrive because there were people who took advantage of it. Some fishermen also said they had not received BPJS because they were not registered and felt unable to pay BPJS contributions. The

fishermen who use BPJS still have to incur large costs, one of which is eye treatment which must be referred to the Eye Hospital in Bandung City because the eye health facilities in Palabuhanratu are not adequate, so fishermen have to incur large costs for transportation and housing during treatment. The fishermen also want accident insurance when at sea, considering the risk of accidents at sea is very large.

3.2.7 Ease of Enrolling Children in Education

According to the interview results, admitting children to education is easy and affordable, but the respondents still find it difficult because there are many unexpected costs needed to support the learning process. These costs include uniforms and LKS books. It is not uncommon for children to go on strike because they are ashamed that they can't buy LKS books. This is due to the uncertain income of fishermen. Not only sending their children to education, fishermen's parents are also obliged to supervise and provide facilities for their children's growth and development. This is in line with the opinion (Sudarna 2014) which says that the role of parents is very necessary so that their children can grow and develop healthily and intelligently

3.2.8 Quality of education for household members

The quality of education for family members of *drift gillnet* in Palabuhanratu is sufficient. Some fishing communities cannot read and write due to the lack of quality education as a child caused by limited economic costs so they cannot continue their elementary school. Fishermen have an understanding that

education or schooling does not need to be high because school fees are expensive and in the end they will only become fishermen. However, many of them still try to learn to read and write with the help of relatives and family members who can read.

3.2.9 Sense of security from criminal disturbances

All fishermen's families feel safe from being harassed by crime. The life of the fishing community in Palabuhanratu is very close and takes care of each other. In addition, in the village they always hold night patrols to avoid thieves who intend to take valuables or crimes that can threaten life. Research results (Harlik *et al* 2013) It is known that the poverty rate is influenced by population, education and unemployment while crime is influenced by population, education, unemployment and poverty levels.

3.2.10 Ease of accessing information and communication technology

The criteria for the ease of accessing information and communication technology can be categorized into moderate criteria. Fishermen said that they prefer to use old school cellphones (not *touchscreens*) because their operation is more efficient because they will not be damaged quickly when exposed to water when go to sea. Currently mobile phones, sophisticated gadgets to support online learning during the Covid-19 pandemic. Drift gill net fishermen in Palabuhanratu also rarely use GPS technology to determine fishing areas, because they prefer to use their fishing instincts that have been around for year

3.2.11 Average Recapitulation of Welfare Level Indicators for Fishermen's Households

Table 1. Average Recapitulation of Welfare Level Indicators for Drift Gillnet Fishermen in Palabuhanratu

No	Indicator	Weight	Score
----	-----------	--------	-------

1.	Household Income	25%	0.25
2.	Household Expenditure	25%	0.75
3.	Living Condition	10%	0.3
4.	Facilities Residence	4%	0.12
5.	Household Health	10%	0.3
6.	Ease of Utilization of Health Personnel Facilities	5%	0.1
7.	Ease of Enrolling Children in Education	5%	0.15
8.	Quality of Education	10%	0.2
9.	Sense of Security from Crime Disorder	3%	0.09
10.	Ease of Accessing ICT	2%	0.01
Average score			2.27

*Analysis Primary Data

Based on the table above, it can be seen that the average score of the welfare level of drift gill net fishermen in Palabuhanratu is 2.27, which means that it belongs to the moderate level of welfare. Overall, drift gillnet in Palabuhanratu are in good condition, quite different from the economic situation several years ago as evidenced by research (Fadhilah and Kurnia 2018) which states that the welfare level of fishermen in Palabuhanratu is less prosperous. It is different from the results of research (Wafi *et al* 2019) which states that as many as 56.67% percent of small-scale fishermen around the Sunda Strait waters already have a high level of welfare. This is because fishermen in the Sunda Strait have a high level of income and high expenditure. Meanwhile, the income of drifting gill net fishermen in Palabuhanratu is still low because it is smaller than the minimum wage. This is because many of the fishing families only rely on the head of the family to earn a living. So that their income depends on seafood alone without any side jobs. Meanwhile, the wives of the fishermen only act as housewives.

The number of human resources who use drift gill net fishing gear is also starting to decrease. This is because the fishing ground for this fishing gear is blocked by other fishing gear, namely Fish Agregating Device (FADs) and Fish Charts. Palabuhanratu is a bay, so the presence of FADs in the middle of the sea

causes schools of fish to gather around FADs and fish do not enter the bay. In addition, the maintenance and repair of expensive nets is also a factor for fishermen to move and use other fishing gear. This is evidenced by research (Budiarti 2012) which states that most gillnet fishermen switch to troll line fishing gear.

4. CONCLUSION

The conclusion that can be drawn from this research is that the average score of the welfare level of drift gillnet fishermen in Palabuhanratu is 2.27, which means that it belongs to the moderate level of welfare.

REFERENCES

1. Adhanari, A., S. 2005. The Effect of Education Level on Work Productivity of Production Section Employees at Maharani Handicrafts in Bantul Regency. Thesis. Semarang. Faculty of Social Science.
2. Central Bureau of Statistics. (2015). Central Bureau of Statistics.
3. Budiarti, TT 2012. Changes in Gillnetters to Troll Liners at PPN Palabuhanratu. Marine Fisheries. 3(1) 83-89
4. Cahyadinata I, Fahrudin A, Sulistiono, Kurnia R. 2019. Household welfare of mud crab fishermen in small outermost

- islands. Case study: Enggano Island, Bengkulu Province, Indonesia. *AACL Bioflux*. 12(2):564–574.
5. Chalid N, Yusuf Y. 2014. The effect of poverty rate, unemployment rate, district/city minimum wage and economic growth rate on human development index in Riau Province. *Journal of Economics*. 22(2):1–12.
 6. Fadhillah, NA, and Kurnia, T. 2018. Analysis of Fisherman's Needs To Financing Of Sharia Banking In Pelabuhan Ratu Sukabumi, West Java. *Ratio Journal*. 4(2)
 7. Guritno, DFER, Wibowo, BA, & Boesono, H. (2014). Analysis of Household Welfare of Fishermen Fishing Skipper and Crew of Hand Line At Archipelago Fishing Port Pelabuhanratu Sukabumi West Java. *Journal of Fisheries Resources Utilization Management and Technology*, 3(3), 311–318.
 8. Harlik, H., Amir, A., and Hardiani, H. 2013. Factors influencing poverty and unemployment in Jambi City. *Journal of Regional Finance and Development Perspectives*, 1(2), 109-120. Jambi.
 9. Hasyim, H. 2006. Analysis of the Relationship between Characteristics of Coffee Farmers and Income (Case Study: Dolok Saribu Village, Paguran District, North Tapanuli Regency). *Journal of Communication Research* Volume 18 (1).University of North Sumatra Research Institute
 10. Notoatmodjo. 2012. *Health Research Methods*. Jakarta: Rineka Cipta
 11. Rahman DM. 2005. Design and Construction of the New Hope Gillnet Ship at Tidung Island Shipyard [Thesis]. Bogor: Faculty of Fisheries and Marine Sciences, Bogor Agricultural University.
 12. Sudarna. 2014. *Early Childhood Education with Character*. Yogyakarta: Genius
 13. Wafi, H. Yonvitner & Yulianto, G. 2019. Welfare Levels of Fishermen from the Profit Sharing